1989

# John P. Shupe v. Board of Review of the Industrial Commission of Utah, Department of Employment Security : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

**JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF PROCEEDING**

This Court has jurisdiction to decide this appeal pursuant to Utah Code Ann. §78-2a-3(2)(a)(1987). This is an appeal from a final order of the Utah Industrial Commission, after a formal adjudicative proceeding.

**STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL**

Did the Industrial Commission apply the correct standard in its denial of unemployment insurance compensation benefits to John Shupe? Under the appropriate standard did the actions of John Shupe constitute disqualifying conduct for purposes of unemployment compensation benefits?

**DETERMINATIVE STATUTES, REGULATIONS AND CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS**

Utah Code Ann. §§35-4-5(b)(1) and 5(b)(2); Utah  
Administrative Code §§R475-5b-1 and R475-5b-2.

**STATEMENT OF CASE**

Claimant John Shupe began work as a full-time copy machine repairman for the Les Olson Company on October 7, 1985. On



September 14, 1988, Mr. Shupe was arrested for solicitation. The solicitation occurred during his lunch hour, when he was off company property and not on the properties of any businesses which he serviced as a repairman. He eventually pled guilty to a third-degree misdemeanor, and was fined \$100.00.

When he received his notice to appear to enter his plea, he got permission to take time off work and to go to court on the appropriate day. When asked about why he needed to go to court, the claimant, fearing reprisal, did not tell his employer the real reason for his court appearance and instead said that he had to appear in court as a witness. When he got to the court, he was informed that the date scheduled for his plea was incorrect, that the court was not in session that day, and that he would have to reschedule his court date.

As of September 26, 1988, Claimant had not rescheduled his court date. Nor had he received the usual court warning in the mail that failure to reschedule would result in his arrest. On that day, a warrant was issued for his arrest and he was arrested on company property when he arrived for work.

After his release later that day, Claimant called work and told his employer why he was arrested. He was immediately discharged. Two days later, he received in the mail his initial warning from the court to reschedule his appearance or be subject to arrest.

The Utah Department of Employment Security denied Claimant unemployment compensation benefits on October 28, 1988. The

denial was affirmed by an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) on November 29, 1988, after a hearing on November 21, 1988. The ALJ found relevant an incident over thirteen months earlier, in October 1987, when Claimant had purportedly made sexually-oriented comments to a fourteen year-old boy on company property, and had been put on probation following the incident. The ALJ held that there was just cause for discharge because the actions of Claimant "shrouded the employer's ability to trust him (Claimant) to behave in a socially-acceptable manner." On February 7, 1989 the Board of Review of the Industrial Commission affirmed on the same grounds.

#### **STANDARD OF REVIEW**

In reviewing the application of statutes or regulations to the pertinent facts, this Court should apply an intermediate standard of review, which is a determination of whether the conclusions are reasonable and rational. Stegen v. Department of Employment Security, 78 Utah Adv. Rep. 46 (Utah Ct. of Appeals 1988). In determining which legal standard should be applied, the conclusions of the Administrative Law Judge and the Board of Review are entitled no deference.

#### **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT**

The Administrative Law Judge and the Board of Review of the Industrial Commission used the incorrect legal standard in determining whether appellant John Shupe's actions constituted

disqualifying conduct for purposes of unemployment compensation benefits. However, even under the standard they used, that of just cause discharge, their conclusion that the conduct was disqualifying is not a reasonable and rational conclusion based on the pertinent facts because the appellant's actions were insufficiently "connected" to his employment and insufficiently indicative of fault on his part.

#### **ARGUMENT**

#### **POINT I. THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE SHOULD HAVE APPLIED UTAH CODE ANN. §35-4-5(b)(2) INSTEAD OF UTAH CODE ANN. §35-4-5(b)(1). UNDER THE FORMER CLAIMANT IS ENTITLED TO UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE BENEFITS.**

Prior to 1983, Utah Code Ann. 35-4-5(b)(1) denied unemployment benefits to a claimant who was "discharged for an act or omission in connection with employment, not constituting a crime, which is deliberate, willful, or wanton and adverse to the employer's rightful interest..." The Utah Supreme Court in Clearfield City v. Department of Employment Security, 663 P.2d 440 (Utah 1983) articulated a three-pronged test for determining "misconduct" and ineligibility for unemployment compensation. A claimant was held to be disqualified for purposes of unemployment compensation benefits (1) when he was discharged for an act or omission in connection with the employment (2) which was "deliberate, willful, or wanton," and was (3) "adverse to the employer's rightful interests." In that case the court also held that disqualifying actions need not be motivated by an intention to cause harm to the employer or an intentional disregard of his

interests, but could be "volitional acts by an employee who could not have been heedless of their consequences." Id. at 444.

Also in 1983, after the court had heard arguments, but before it had issued a decision, the Utah Legislature added a "just cause" provision to Section 35-4-5(b)(1), thereby denying eligibility for unemployment compensation benefits to any person:

For the week in which the claimant was discharged for just cause or for an act or omission in connection with employment, not constituting a crime, which is deliberate, willful, or wanton and adverse to the employer's rightful interest, if so found by the commission, and thereafter until claimant has earned an amount equal to at least six times the claimant's weekly benefit amount in bona fide covered employment. (Emphasis added)

The case of Kehl v. Board of Review of Industrial Commission, 700 P.2d 1129 (1985) was the first to address the new "just cause" provision. The Kehl court determined that in order to find just cause, there still must be a finding of fault on the part of the claimant. The basic factors the court relied upon to establish "fault" and ineligibility for benefits under the definition of just cause were: (a) culpability, (b) knowledge, and (c) control.

In Lane v. Board of Review of Industrial Commission, 727 P.2d 206 (Utah 1986) the Utah Supreme Court held that the standards for "just cause" and "deliberate, willful or wanton misconduct" were identical since the court in Clearfield had already determined that the latter did not require intentional

harm to the employer's interests. Id. at 210. They interpreted the addition of "just cause" as designed to do exactly what the decision in Clearfield did: eliminate the requirement of intentional harm. See also Utah Administrative Code §R475-5b-1 II. 3. Since some fault on the part of the claimant was still required, the Industrial Commission had promulgated rules pertaining to culpability, knowledge, and control.

The plain meaning of Utah Code Ann. §35-4-5(b)(1) requires that for acts constituting crimes, it is not the proper to apply this particular section to determine disqualifying conduct. The statute explicitly limits its application to "an act or omission...not constituting a crime." Utah Code Ann. §35-4-5(b)(2) deals with discharges for criminal acts. It might be argued that "just cause" is a separate standard and that the limitation to non-criminal acts applies only to deliberate, wanton or willful misconduct. Not only does Lane rule out this interpretation, the court's decision there implied that the legislature was not attempting to modify the portion of 35-4-5(b)(1) limiting that section to crimes. Even the dissent in Lane, which claimed that there were two separate standards, was based on the reasoning that while "deliberate, wanton or willful misconduct" describes "conduct which falls short of being intentional but which is more culpable than negligence... 'just cause' for termination... might arise from the commission of a negligent act." Id. at 212. Finally, Utah Administrative Code §R475-5b-2 V. 1. and 2. state that discharge for crime should be

determined under 5(b)(1) only where it is disputed whether a crime was committed.

Utah Code Ann. §35-4-5(b)(2) requires not only a connection to work, but that the crime be one of dishonesty. It will be argued later that the actions of the claimant were not sufficiently connected to work to constitute disqualifying conduct, but it is clear that the claimant's crime was not one of dishonesty. John Shupe pled guilty to a third-degree misdemeanor for solicitation, and paid a \$100.00 fine. Utah Code Ann. §76-10-1302 defines solicitation as agreeing to engage in sex for a fee or loitering in front of a public building for that purpose. The Utah Unemployment Insurance Rules state that "dishonesty in this context generally means theft but may also include other criminal acts connected with the work that render an employee untrustworthy or show a lack of integrity." Utah Administrative Code §R475-5b-2 III. There is nothing in whatever act constituted the claimant's act of solicitation that indicates any lack of trustworthiness or lack of integrity. Since the Industrial Commission applied the wrong legal standard, and under the correct standard the claimant is entitled to benefits, the decision of the Industrial Commission should be reversed.

**POINT II. THE CLAIMANT'S CONDUCT WAS INSUFFICIENTLY  
CONNECTED TO EMPLOYMENT TO WARRANT DENIAL OF  
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE BENEFITS.**

The Utah Unemployment Insurance Rules state that disqualifying conduct must "have such 'connection' to the employee's duties and to the employer's business that it is a

subject of legitimate and significant concern to the employer." Utah Administrative Code, §475-5b-1 VIII. (emphasis added). Thus, in order for there to be a sufficient connection between the actions of the claimant and his employment (1) the concerns of the employer must be legitimate, (2) there must be a significant potential hinderance if the employee's ability to perform his duties, and (3) there must be significant potential harm to the employer's interests.

John Shupe was a copy-machine repairman. He was convicted of a misdemeanor and lied to his employer about why he had to go to court. Due mainly to bureaucratic error he was arrested on company property for not appearing in court to enter his plea.

What John Shupe was punished for in a court of law and by his employers through losing his job should not be the basis for denial of unemployment benefits unless his conduct was sufficiently connected to his employment. The incident involving the 14 year-old boy took place on company property and during work hours. It was sufficiently connected to his employment to be disqualifying conduct if other requirements were met. And the employer did take corrective action and set forth guidelines for the claimant to follow which he successfully completed. His ninety-day probation ended nine months prior to discharge.

Most of the conduct of the claimant that is relevant to this case took place away from the workplace and not during work hours. And while the claimant might have lied about why he had to appear in court because of embarrassment or fear of reprisal by

his employer, the magnitude of his lie (as compared with what potentially he had to lose by telling the truth) is minimal, and not necessarily reflective of his general trustworthiness as an employee. The claimant's reason for missing work was that he had to appear in court, and he informed his employer about this fact truthfully. Mr. Shupe's white lie about being a witness, rather than the defendant, was hardly advisable but does not warrant the generality that he is "untrustworthy" and therefore incapable of successfully completing his professional duties. But the supervisor who discharged the claimant, James Olson, testified that he fired him because of the lie about the court appearance, that the claimant could no longer be trusted with the tools the company left in his care (TR. 7).

This case is distinguishable from Clearfield City v. Dept. of Employment Security, 663 P.2d 440 (Utah 1983). The claimant's actions in that case were much more egregious; he committed an act of sodomy with one of his students at his secondary job at the Clearfield Job Corps Center, while being observed by other students. Id. at 441. It was widely publicized. And the claimant there was also a police officer. The incident significantly affected the his ability to perform his duties. As the court in Clearfield noted, since "the entire course of events was a matter of public notoriety in the city...(there) would surely have (been) a significant adverse effect upon the officer's credibility as a police officer and as a witness in the courts of law." Id. at 443. In the case at bar not only was there no



publicity which might have affected the claimant's ability to perform his duties, his duties were not of the sort which would likely be damaged by such publicity. As in Clearfield, the claimant also told a lie to his supervisor, but the extent of the lie was merely why he had to appear in court. Given the embarrassing nature of the situation, and its irrelevance to his work, this lie is hardly the sort of event that would be expected to be repeated.

The court in Clearfield also noted that the claimant there was breaking a law that he had an affirmative public duty to uphold. Mr. Shupe's profession added no such additional duties to be of extremely high moral character. The Administrative Law Judge held that employers are warranted in expecting that employees behave away from work "in a socially acceptable manner" (ALJ's decision, p. 2). This is too broad; it makes almost any conduct connected to employment. The employer does have an interest in preventing dishonor to the company's name and preserving the company's reputation is a legitimate concern. In the case at bar the claimant was not on company property, not at any business serviced by the company, not arrested while working, not arrested for a significant crime, and received no publicity, nor was he likely to receive publicity for the arrest. The proposition that there was significant potential harm to the employer's interests or that the claimant's ability to perform his job was affected in any way are not supported by substantial evidence.

The ALJ also suggested that the claimant broke a reasonable rule of the employer, "that any similar behavior (to the incident in October 1987) would result in dismissal" (ALJ's decision, page 2). But the first incident occurred on company property and during work hours. The employer presented little evidence regarding either incident, but there are obvious dissimilarities. The only similarity is that the both involved sex, and this connection itself depends on Scott Olson's hearsay within hearsay testimony regarding the first incident (TR. 9). There is not even the suggestion that the second event was "socially unacceptable" in a similar way. There was no suggestion that the behavior involved homosexual conduct or a minor. Its unacceptability consisted mostly in its illegality, which may just have been a matter of loitering in the wrong place at the wrong time. See Utah Code Ann. §76-10-1302 (1973). The employer's warning to the claimant in October 1987 was too ambiguous to constitute a rule and a reasonable interpretation of it would hardly apply to the actions for which the claimant was arrested for in connection to the solicitation charge. It is not a legitimate concern of the employer that employees behave in a "socially acceptable" manner when off company property and during non-working hours. The Utah Administrative Code reflect this; they require at least potential significant damage to the reputation of the business. Id. at §R475-5b-1 VII. Since this is not a legitimate concern, and what concerns the employer had were insignificantly related to either the claimant's ability to perform his duties or other potential

harm to the employer's interests, the decision of the Industrial Commission that the claimant's conduct was sufficiently connected to his employment to warrant denial of benefits should be reversed.

**POINT III. THE CLAIMANT'S CONDUCT DID NOT CONSTITUTE JUST CAUSE FOR DISCHARGE SINCE IT WAS NOT SUFFICIENTLY CULPABLE NOR COULD HE HAVE REASONABLY ANTICIPATED THE EFFECT IT WOULD HAVE.**

The Utah Unemployment Insurance Rules list three requirements for a determination of eligibility under its definition of just cause: (a) culpability (b) knowledge, and (c) control. Since the question of control is not at issue in the Shupe case, only the culpability and knowledge factors will be analyzed in this memorandum. These are the three factors that the court in Kehl v. Board of Review of Industrial Commission, supra, stated were the proper elements to consider in determining fault on the part of the claimant.

**A. THE CLAIMANT'S CONDUCT WAS NOT SUFFICIENTLY CULPABLE.**

The Kehl court defined culpability as the seriousness of the conduct as it affects continuance of the employment relationship. The discharge "must have been necessary to avoid actual or potential harm to the employer's rightful interests... The wrongness of the conduct must be considered in the context of the particular employment and how it affects the employer's rights. If the conduct was an isolated incident of poor judgment and there is no expectation that the conduct will be continued or repeated, potential harm may not be shown and therefore it is not

necessary to discharge the employee." Utah Administrative Code §R475-5b-1 II. 1. a.

The court in Kehl held that the wrongness of claimant's conduct (carrying ten thousand pounds of explosives over a train track while a train was approaching), if viewed in the context of the employment and the potentially devastating effects on the employer's rights, was severe. Discharge in Kehl was necessary to avoid the potential harm to the employer's interests that another violation would cause.

Applying the "culpability" standard to the Shupe case, it should be reasonably concluded that Shupe's conduct doesn't reach the standard of culpability set forth in Kehl. Shupe's conduct was not a work-related or during-work act. Whereas Kehl's act of carrying explosives over the train tracks in the wake of an approaching train shows a reckless disregard for the company rules and an imminent danger to human lives, the claimant's conduct only concerned himself. Kehl's act could have cost her employer, Hercules, several hundreds of thousands of dollars, as well as cost Hercules its excellent reputation in the community. Shupe's conduct cost his employer nothing. His conduct does not show a disregard for the company rules, nor does his conduct relate to his work at all. Company rules cannot reasonably regulate an employee's life during non-work hours, unless the regulation is regarding conduct which would prevent the employee from performing his/her job satisfactorily or could cause significant damage for the employee. Whether Shupe solicited sex

or not during his non-work hours has no bearing on whether he can perform his duties as a copy repairman to the satisfaction of his employer. And it is hard to see how his actions could subject the employer to any sort of legal liability.

Finally, there is no evidence that Shupe's conduct caused any negative publicity for the employer -- in fact, there is no evidence that the incident was publicized at all. Shupe's conduct can be distinguished from the conduct in the Kehl case, where a potential accident would definitely have received adverse publicity for Hercules, and might have caused a public outcry against the company for its lack of compliance with public safety concerns.

Shupe's conduct can also be distinguished from the conduct in Clearfield City v. Department of Employment Security, 663 P.2d 440 (Utah 1983), where a policeman who also worked part time as a counselor committed sodomy on the job site where he was a counselor. In the Clearfield case, the sodomy incident was widely publicized in the community. Said the Clearfield Court, "In the sensitive area of law enforcement a police officer's reputation of high moral character and his credibility as a witness in his frequent appearances in the court of law are essential to his effective performance of his duty...Under the circumstances, the claimant's actions were sufficiently culpable and adverse to the employer's rightful interest to invoke disqualification under Section 35-4-5(b)(1) of the Utah Employment Security Act." See Clearfield, 663 P.2d at 442.

Unlike the law enforcement area, Shupe's job as a copy-machine repairman did not require high moral character. Nor did Shupe's immoral conduct threaten to bring his company into disrepute. Without substantiated evidence of adverse publicity to the Les Olson Company proximately caused by Shupe's arrest, Shupe's conduct cannot be considered "culpable" and adverse to his employer's interests under 35-4-5(b)(1).

**B. IT IS NOT REASONABLE TO EXPECT THE CLAIMANT TO ANTICIPATE THE EFFECTS OF HIS CONDUCT.**

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