1989

John P. Shupe v. Board of Review of the Industrial Commission of Utah, Department of Employment Security, and Les Olson Company : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

POINT I

The judicial standards of review set forth in §63-46b-16(4) of the Utah Administrative Procedures Act (UAPA) have superceded the judicial standards of review set forth in §35-4-10(i) of the Utah Employment Security Act (UESA). The Utah Court of Appeals in the case of Grace Drilling Company v. Board of Review noted that the "substantial evidence" test under §16(4)(g) of UAPA grants appellate courts greater latitude in reviewing the record than was previously granted under the "any evidence of substance" test of UESA. In applying the "substantial evidence" test the court reviews the whole record before the court. In so doing, a court must consider not only the evidence supporting the Board's factual findings, but also the evidence that is contrary to the Board's factual findings. A party challenging the Board's findings of fact must marshall all of the evidence supporting the findings and show that despite the supporting facts, in light of the conflicting evidence, the findings are not supported by substantial evidence.

The existing intermediate standard for reviewing the Board's determinations as described in the Administrative Services case is consistent with §63-46(b)-16(4)(d) of UAPA. The intermediate standard of review has therefore not been changed

and continues to be the law and the appropriate standard of review under UESA as modified and supplemented by the enactment of UAPA.

POINT II

§35-4-5(b)(2) pertains to a situation where a claimant is discharged by an employer for dishonesty constituting a crime in connection with the claimant's work. An example would be theft or embezzlement of property belonging to the employer. Technically speaking, the phrase "not constituting a crime" in §5(b)(1) only applies to the second standard for discharge under §5(b)(1). In other words, the phrase "not constituting a crime" modifies the language "for an act or omission in connection with employment . . . which is deliberate, willful, or wanton and adverse to the employer's rightful interest . . .". It does not modify "just cause".

The language "not constituting a crime" is used in §5(b)(1) only for the purpose of distinguishing it from §5(b)(2). §5(b)(2) has a very limited application. In the instant case the crime of soliciting or patronizing a prostitute does not fit within the narrow guidelines of §5(b)(2). It does not involve dishonesty in connection with the work of the claimant of repairing copy machines. Since §5(b)(2) cannot be the applicable disqualifying provision of the statute, the facts in

the instant case must fall under the disqualification provided in §5(b)(1) of the Act.

POINT III

There were four incidents in the instant case that are so interrelated that they must be jointly considered for the purpose of applying the "in connection with employment test" of §5(b)(1) of the Act and Unemployment Insurance Rules interpreting said section. The first incident occurred in October 1987. The claimant had propositioned a fourteen year old donut boy for sex on the employer's property. The employer immediately discharged the claimant. The claimant persuaded the employer to reinstate the claimant as an employee under three very stringent conditions. The third condition was that in the event of any incident occurring in the future that even resembled the incident with the fourteen year old donut boy that the claimant would be terminated immediately.

The second incident--the solicitation incident on State Street in and of itself might not be sufficient to satisfy the "in connection with employment" requirement of §5(b)(1); however, this incident is strongly coupled with the previous incident involving the fourteen year old donut salesman. Claimant knew that the solicitation incident on State Street was the sort of thing he had been warned about the year before.

The third incident when the claimant lied to the employer regarding the reason he had to appear in court on September 14 was in connection with employment. The lie is not material except as it relates to and is coupled with the first incident involving the fourteen year old donut boy. The claimant demonstrated to the employer that he would lie to the employer regarding a legitimate inquiry of the employer as to the reason why the claimant had to take time off from work. The fourth incident when the claimant was arrested on the employer's property in and of itself would not justify a denial of benefits under §5(b)(1) except that it is a part of this whole train of events which when taken together satisfy the "in connection with employment" requirement of §5(b)(1).

POINT IV

A. CULPABILITY FACTOR

The culpability factor essential for a determination of ineligibility under §5(b)(1) of the Act has been satisfied in the instant case. The duty of honesty is inherent in any employee/employer relationship. The claimant was discharged because the employer could not trust the claimant to tell the truth and could not trust him to behave appropriately with customers as regards suggestions of a sexual nature and solicitation for sex. The

Board properly concluded this to be just cause for discharge under §5(b)(1) of the Act and applicable Unemployment Insurance Rules. The accumulation of incidents in the instant case all taken together and jointly considered satisfy the culpability factor. The conclusion of the Board of Review in this regard falls within the limits of reasonableness and rationality as per the intermediate standard of review applicable in this administrative proceeding.

B. KNOWLEDGE FACTOR

The best indication of what the claimant subjectively understood the employer warning to mean by the language "any act that even resembled this type of incident" was the incident that occurred on September 14, 1988 when the claimant lied to the employer regarding the reason why he had to appear in court. The evidence supports the finding that the claimant lied because he knew that his actions in soliciting sex on State Street were in contravention of the third condition of the warning issued by the employer and that under the terms of the warning he was in jeopardy of losing his job if the employer became aware of the pending prosecution for solicitation. Under the the applicable Unemployment Insurance Rule it was not necessary that the claimant intended to cause harm to the employer, but he certainly reasonably should have been able to

anticipate a discharge as a result of his actions under all of the facts and circumstances of this case. The conclusion of the Board of Review that the knowledge factor was satisfied in the instant case falls within the limits of reasonableness and rationality as required by the intermediate standard of review.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

IN REVIEWING A DECISION OF THE BOARD OF REVIEW, THE COURT WILL APPLY THE STANDARDS OF JUDICIAL REVIEW SET FORTH IN SUBSECTION 63-46b-16(4) OF THE UTAH ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT.

With the passage of the Utah Administrative Procedures Act (UAPA), the judicial standards of review set forth in §63-46b-16(4) of the UAPA have superseded the judicial standards of review set forth in §35-4-10(i) of the Utah Employment Security Act (UESA). Grace Drilling Co. v. Board of Review, 110 Utah Adv. Rep. 34 (Utah App. June 2, 1989).

§63-46b-16(4) of the UAPA provides as follows:

(4) The appellate court shall grant relief only if, on the basis of the agency's record, it determines that a person seeking judicial review has been substantially prejudiced by any of the following:

(a) the agency action, or the statute or rule on which the agency action is based, is unconstitutional on its face or as applied;

(b) the agency has acted beyond the jurisdiction conferred by any statute;

(c) the agency has not decided all of the issues requiring resolution;

(d) the agency has erroneously interpreted or applied the law;

(e) the agency has engaged in an unlawful procedure or decision-making process, or has failed to follow prescribed procedure;

(f) the persons taking the agency action were illegally constituted as a decision-making body or were subject to disqualification;

(g) the agency action is based upon a determination of fact, made or implied by the agency, that is not supported by substantial evidence when viewed in light of the whole record before the court;

(h) the agency action is:

(i) an abuse of the discretion delegated to the agency by statute;

(ii) contrary to a rule of the agency;

(iii) contrary to the agency's prior practice, unless the agency justifies the inconsistency by giving facts and reasons that demonstrate a fair and rational basis for the inconsistency;
or

(iv) otherwise arbitrary or capricious.

Grace Drilling Company v. Board of Review, supra, is the first case in which a Board of Review decision has been reviewed by the Court of Appeals under the UAPA standards of review. The Court in Grace noted certain changes in the standard of

review under UAPA from what had previously been the standard of review under UESA. The Court in Grace noted that the "substantial evidence test" under §16(4)(g) of UAPA grants appellate courts greater latitude in reviewing the record than was previously granted under the Utah Employment Security Act's "any evidence of substance test." By way of further explanation and exposition, the Court noted that "substantial evidence" is more than a mere scintilla of evidence, though something less than the weight of the evidence. Substantial evidence is such relevant evidence as a reasonable mind might accept as adequate to support a conclusion. The Court further noted that in applying the "substantial evidence test," the Court reviews the whole record before the court, and this review is distinguishable from both a de novo review and the "any competent evidence" standard of review. Moreover, under the "whole record test" a Court must consider not only the evidence supporting the Board's factual findings, but also the evidence that fairly detracts from and is contrary to the Board's factual findings.

The Court further stated a new concept not formerly made a requirement incumbent upon a party challenging the Board's findings of fact and that is that such a party:

must marshall all of the evidence supporting the findings and show that despite the

supporting facts, and in light of the conflicting or contradictory evidence, the findings are not supported by substantial evidence.

The Court then stated what appears to be a similar rule to what the courts have followed in the past in regard to unemployment insurance cases, that is:

In undertaking such a review, this court will not substitute its judgment as between two reasonably conflicting views, even though we may have come to a different conclusion had the case come before us for de novo review. (cases cited) It is the province of the Board, not appellate courts to resolve conflicting evidence, and where inconsistent inferences can be drawn from the same evidence, it is for the Board to draw the inferences. (case cited)

The Board of Review understands the foregoing to be the standard of review under the recently enacted Utah Administrative Procedures Act as interpreted by the Court in the Grace case supra.

In the case of Pro-Benefit Staffing, Inc. v. Board of Review, 110 Utah Adv. Rep. 3, (Utah App. June 2, 1989), the Utah Court of Appeals had occasion to address the standard of review in regard to mixed questions of law and fact under the UAPA. The Court noted that:

. . . Whether an employee was terminated for "just cause" is a mixed question of law and fact, and thus on appeal we must determine whether the UAPA alters the standard for reviewing such a determination. . . .

The Court further noted that:

Prior to the UAPA, our courts uniformly applied an intermediate standard of reasonableness and rationality in reviewing mixed questions of law and fact, otherwise referred to as the application of "basic facts . . . to the legal rules governing the case." Utah Dep't of Admin. Servs. v. Public Serv. Comm'n, 658 P.2d 601, 610 (Utah 1983). Under the intermediate standard the Board's conclusions must be reasonable and rational "as measured against the language and purpose of the governing legislation."

The Court then concluded that the existing intermediate standard for reviewing the Board's determinations as described in the Administrative Services case is consistent with the approach set forth in UAPA, §63-46b-16(4)(d). The Court indicated it intends to continue to embrace the intermediate standard analysis set forth in the Administrative Services case and that it would "not disturb the Board's application of its factual findings to the law unless its determination exceeds the bounds of reasonableness and rationality."

The Board of Review concludes from the foregoing that the intermediate standard of review as originally set forth in the Administrative Services case and referred to in many subsequent cases arising under the Utah Employment Security Act has not been changed and continues to be the law and the appropriate standard of review under the Employment Security Act as modified and supplemented by the enactment of the Utah Administrative Procedures Act.

POINT II

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE AND BOARD OF REVIEW PROPERLY APPLIED UTAH CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 35-4-5(b)(1) IN MAKING ITS DETERMINATION THAT THE CLAIMANT WAS NOT ELIGIBLE FOR BENEFITS. SECTION 35-4-5(b)(2) WAS NOT APPLICABLE IN THE INSTANT CASE.

§§35-4-5(b)(1) and 35-4-5(b)(2) of the Utah Employment Security Act, referred to above, provide as follows:

5. An individual is ineligible for benefits or for purposes of establishing a waiting period:

(b)(1) For the week in which the claimant was discharged for just cause or for an act or omission in connection with employment, not constituting a crime, which is deliberate, willful, or wanton and adverse to the employer's rightful interest, if so found by the commission, and thereafter until the claimant has earned an amount equal to at least six times the claimant's weekly benefit amount in bona fide covered employment.

(b)(2) For the week in which he was discharged for dishonesty constituting a crime in connection with his work as shown by the facts together with his admission, or as shown by his conviction in a court of competent jurisdiction of a crime in connection with that dishonesty and for the 51 next following weeks. If by reason of his alleged dishonesty in connection with his work, the individual is held in legal custody or is free on bail, any determination of his eligibility shall be held in abeyance pending his release or conviction.

§35-4-5(b)(2) pertains to a situation where a claimant is discharged by an employer for dishonesty constituting a crime

in connection with the claimant's work. An example would be theft or embezzlement of property belonging to the employer. In order for this disqualification to apply there must be a conviction of the claimant for the crime in the appropriate court or there must be an unqualified admission on the part of the claimant that he committed all of the elements of that crime. The penalty imposed under this particular disqualification is a very onerous one. It requires disqualification for the week the claimant was discharged and the 51 next following weeks. By way of comparison to §5(b)(1), a claimant discharged under §5(b)(1) can purge the disqualification and become eligible for benefits by working at a temporary subject employment and earning an amount equal to at least six times the weekly benefit amount.

§5(b)(1) presently provides that an individual is ineligible for benefits "for the week in which the claimant was discharged for just cause or for an act or omission in connection with employment, not constituting a crime, which is deliberate, willful," etc. Prior to June 29, 1983, §5(b)(1) provided that an individual is ineligible for benefits "for the week in which the claimant was discharged for an act or omission in connection with employment, not constituting a crime, which is deliberate, willful," etc. The amendment of §5(b)(1) effective June 29, 1983, added the words "for just cause or". "Laws of

Utah", 1983 (1st S.S.), CH. 20. Technically speaking, the phrase "not constituting a crime" only applies to the second standard for discharge under §5(b)(1) which was the standard under the law prior to the amendment adding the "just cause" provision standard. In other words, the phrase "not constituting a crime" modifies the language "for an act or omission in connection with employment . . . which is deliberate, willful, or wanton and adverse to the employer's rightful interest . . ." It does not modify "for just cause".

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